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Price 3d.

A DEFENCE COMMITTEE.

Although carried only by a majority of one vote, the
decision of the Central Council to form a Ringing Defence
Committee was, we believe, a right one. In the course of
the debate the discussion rather ran off to a minor issue—
that of replying to newspaper attacks upon bells—and it
was only by the timely intervention of the Hon. Sec. of
the Salisbury Guild that the meeting was brought back to
the questions that really mattered most. To set up a
central committee to reply to the sporadic attacks
which appear in local newspapers in various parts of the
country would have been an almost futile action, for these
attacks, which may or may not have any reasonable
foundation, can usually best be replied to by the incumbent
of the church in question, because knowledge of the special
facts are essential to an effective answer.

The important point in this matter is to have ready for
action a small committee authorised to deal with any
wider and general menace to ringing and ringers which
might arise from Parliamentary or official civic action.
Such menace might come upon us unawares at any time,
and while Alderman Pritchett's legal opinion was reassur-
ing when he said that bells could not be suppressed except
by Act of Parliament, it is just the risk, as the Rev. LI.
Edwards pointed out, that something might slip into an
Act which could be construed into a limitation of the use
of bells, that presents the danger which ringers as an
organised body ought to be prepared at any moment to
combat.

Whether the Literature and Press Committee of the
Council, whiih in the past has been more conspicuous for
what it has not done than for what it has accomplished,
was the best Committee to which the duties involved could
be delegated is a matter lor question. Perhaps the
proposer and seconder of the resolution, who ha\ebeen
added to the committee, may instil more life into the com-
mittee, but we would urge that they should not sit down
and wait until an attack is sprung upon them. They should
prepare some kind of machinery for obtaining eaily
einformation of probable attacks, and dealing with them
when they do arise. It is for the Committee to decide
how best this can be done, but we would suggest that one
of the first ste sthey should take is to find some Member of
Parliament who would keep a wary, eye for any proposals
affecting bells which might be introduced into the Legisla-
ture, just as, we feel sure, they may depend upon Canon
Baker to watch ringers' interests in the National Assembly.
There are one or two Associations which have Members of
the Commons or of the Upper House actively interested in
tlieir ringing afftirs, and the services of these could

(Continued on padge 346.)
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BELLS!BELLS!BELLS!

Let the Music of the Bells celebrate Peace.

mess CHARLES CARR, 1

The OLD-ESTABLISHED firm of Bellfounders,

are now prepared to execute orders for all
kinds of Bells, singly or in rings. Their
foundry is equipped with every modern
appliance for the manufacture of Bells of any
size, weight or note, all their Bells being
moulded and cast on scientific principles;
while their knowledge of the ‘Chemistry
of Metals’ enables them to produce that fine
quality of Tone so much desired by all
lovers of Bell Music.

In their finishing and fitting shops they have installed the
m >st ‘ up-to-date’ Tools and Machinery for the making
of Bell Frames and Fittings, so that they are in a
position to carry out the complete installation
of Peals of Bells for Churches, or Sets
of Chimes for Public Clocks, etc.

SPECIAL ATTENTION GIVEN TO THE RECASTING AND
REHANGING OF EXISTING PEALS.

Orders may be placed now for delivery at a
future date to suit the convenience of clients.

ALL MATERIALS CHEMICALLY AUD MECHANICALLY TESTED.

Catalogue and Book of Testimonials post free ON application.

THE WOODLANDS BELL
AND BRASS FOUNDRY,

SMETHWICK, BIRMINGHAM,

ESTABLISHED 1760.

JOHN NICOLL,

Church Bell Rope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer.

60, QUEEN'S ROAD, PECKHAM, LONDON, SE.

(Two minutesfrom Queen’s Road Station, L.B.&S.C. Railway),

Late 153, Keeton's Road, Bermondsey.

U*k«n to 9t Paul's Cathedra], Westminster Abbey, Imperial Ii
rtitute, Canterbury Edinburgh, St. Albwa, Lincoln. Durham Petal
borough. Melbourne (Australia), Rochester, Dublin Bt. Patrlok 1
Mtnoh** Worcaster Cathedral* Ms.. Mo
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doubtless be enlisted. Then, too, we would suggest that
the Committee might put themselves in possession of the
strictly legal position in which ringers and bell ringing
stand in relation both to the public and the Church. Such
information, ready collated, would be valuable in an
emergency, and might be extremely useful to pass on to
incumbents who have to deal with local hostility. In
any case, it would be well if the Exercise had a central
authority which could supply definite knowledge on a very
complicated subject whenever there was need for it
Other directions in which the Committee may begin at
once to do useful work will doubtless suggest themselves
to the members, but we put forward these ideas in order
that ringers generally may realise that the newly appointed
body need not necessarily be a ‘ wait and see 1Committee.

TWELVE BELL PEALS.
SOUTHWARK, LONDON, S.E.
THE LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
(Late the St. James" Society.)
Oh Monday, June 6, 1921, in Three Hours and Forty-Three Minutes.
At the Cathedral Chukck of St. Saviour,
A PEAL OF STEOMAN CINQUES, 5002 CHANGES;

Tenor 50 cwt.
Thomas H. Taffender Treble
Challis F. Winney ... 2

lsaac J. Attwater , .. e T

Ernest Brett

Arthor D. Barker 3 George A. Card .. .. 9
W illiam H. Fdssell 4 Horace Belcher . 10
Arthdr J. Neale . 5 James Gborge o 11
W illiam H. Pickett... 6 Horatio J. Gdmmer ...Tenor

Composed by F. Dench. Conducted by Arthdr D. Barker.
Rung to commemorate the reopening of Southwark Bridge by H.M.
King George V.
WALTHAM ABBEY. ESSEX.
THE MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LONDON
DIOCESAN GUILD.

On Saturday, June 11, 1921, in Four Hours and Seven Minutes.
At the Abbey Chdrch of St. LawrkncT,
A PEAL OFCAMBRIDGE SURPRISE MAXIMUS. 6280 CHANCES .
Tenor 38! cwt.

Harold W. Clark TFreble ' Thomas Groombridge, jdn. 7
William H. Hewett 2 James E. Davis 8
Charles T. Coles 3 William J. Nddds ... .9
George R. Pye ... 4 ‘M adrice F. R. Hibbert... 10
Albert W. Coles 5 "Thomas Groombkidge, sen, 11
Redben Sanders 6 William 1've i Tenor

Composed by C. J. Sedley. Conducted by William Pye.
' First peal in the method. First in the method on the bells.

EIGHT BELL PEALS.

BATH, SOMERSET.
THE BATH AND WELLS DIOOBSAN ASSOCIATION.

On Thursday, June 2, 1921, in Three Hours and Eight Minutes,
At the Chcrch of St. Andrew,

A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 50«0 CHANGES;

Parker's Twelve-fart. Tenor 23 cwt. 3 gr. 14 Ib.
Arthdr J. Hill treble Thomas F. King...

Fred C. Rich ...... .2 Richard j. Codsins....... 6
«Alfred E. Wright .3 Gilbert H. Harding........... 7
George H. Hill e, 4 Ldthek P. Smith ... Tenor

Conducted by R. J. Cocsins.

<Firstpeal. Rung on the eve and in honour of H.M. King George's
birthday, also on the eve of the 7th anniversary of Mr. and Mrs.Thomas
F. King's wedding day.

NIHTWINGTON-NEXT-SITTINGBOURNE, KENT.—On ElTstei- L>,
at St. Mary’s Church, for early tsorvice, 720 Oxford Bob Minor: K
Millard 1, W. J. Walker 2, S- Millard 3, H. Millard 4, F. W.
White 5, C. Millard (conductor) 6. For moruiug service, a quarter-
peal of Minor (1,260 changes), in 39 mills., 7211 of Plain Bob, 3*0
Oxford Bob. 180 Canterbury Pleasure: E. Millard 1, S. Millard 2, I.
Jull 3, W. J. Walker 4, F. W. White 5, C. Millard (conductor) 6. >nr
evening service, a quarter-peal of Minor (1,260 changes) in 47 mins.,
720 Plain Boh. 540 Oxford Bob: C. Millard 1, H. Millard 2. E. Gilbert
3, T. Jnll 4, F. W. White 5, W. J. Walker (touductor) 6.
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ALDENHAM. HERTS.
THE HERTFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION,
On Saturday, June 4, 1921, in Two Hours and Fifty-Five Minutes,
Church of St.

At the John the

A PEAL OF SUPERLATIVE SURPRISE MAJOR, 5056 CHANCES;
Tenor 15 cwt.

Baptist,

William Seeley .. Treble William Hodgetts........ 5
Maurice F. R. Hibbert... 2 W illiam G. Whitehead ... 6
eArthdr G. Cooper.. 3 Frederick W. Brinklow ... 7
Hubert Eden 4 Frederick White ... Tenor

Composed by A. Knights. Conducted by Hubert Eden.
* First peal in the method 4inside.’

OVER, CHESHIRE.
THE CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.

mOn Saturday, June 4, 1921, in Three Hours and Ten Minutes,
At the Church o+ St. Chad,
A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;

Parker's Twelve-part.

..Treble Frank Fox 5
2 G. R. Jones.. . ... 6
3 R. T. Holding ... 7

Harry Overton...
H. T. Holding
A. Newell...

J. W. Davies . 4 James H. Riding.. ...Tenor
Conducted by George R. Jones.
Rung with the bells half-muffled for Remembrance Day. First

peal of Triples on the bells.

ASHTEAD. SURREY.
THE ANCII“NT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS.

On Saturday, June 4, 1921, in Two Hours and Forty-Eight Minutes,
At the Church of St. Giles,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES,

T hurstans' Four-part. Tenor 14 cwt.

Joh.v Hoyle ..Treble Albert Harman 5
John W yatt 2 Henry R. Newton . 6
W illiam H. Corbett o3 W illiam E. Garrard o T
George Cook  .oiiciiiiies 4 Wiilliam Cook .ccovvcieeeen. Tenor
Conducted by W. E. Garrard.
SHIFNAL. SHROPSHIRE.
THE SALOP AROHIDIACONAL GUILD.
Oh Saturday, June 4. 1921, in Three Hours,
At the Church of St. Andrew,
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5008 CHANCES;
Tenor 19 cwt. in E.

eFrank P. Mole ...Treble eReginald Pole... ... 5
«James E. Lilley 2 W'illiam Saunders . ... 6
eSamuel Snelson 3 *Charles Pickin . T
Albert Woodvine.. 4 Charles R. Lilley . ...Tenor

Composed by Arthur nghts Conducted by C. R. Lilley.

* First peal of Major.
LAVENHAM. SUFFOLK.
THE SUFFOLK COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, June 4, 1921, in Five Hours and Five Minutes,
At the Church of SS. Peter -and Paul,
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR,7360 CHANGES;
Tenor 23 cwt. in D flat.

Arthur Symonds ... Treble m®mHarry Hall 5
Stedman H. Symonds L. 2 Frank Claydon . . 6
Lawrence Poulson 3 Thomas W. Garrard .. 7
Edward Jenkins 4 Arthur Saunders ... Tenor

Composed by S. Thurston Conducted by S. H. Symonds.

e First peal in tbe method. This is the longest length on these
bells. Messrs. Hall and E. Jenkins hail from Earl Soham, F. Clay-
don from Earls Coin and A. Saunders from Greenstead Green.

ALFRED BOWELL,
CHURCH BELL FOUNDER,

IpsWieH-
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BLACKBURN, LANCASHIRE.
THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.

(Blackburn Branch.)
On Monday, June 0, 1921, in Three Hours and Four Minutes,
At the Church of St. Michael and All Angels,
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 5088 CHANGES;
Tenor 12J cwt.
Arthur Tomllnsojd ... ..Treble ‘John Blackshaw e 5
eThomas Chambers ... . 2 F ked Chambers S

Arthur Chamberlain eFred Bradley ....... T
IThomas Stancliffe... Richard Stancliffe ...Tenor

Composed by T. Day. Conducted by A. ToMLiNSdti.
= First peal in the method. 1 First peal in the method on an inside
bell. Rung as a welcome home to the Vicar (Rev. E. Hanson, B A)
on his safe return from New Zealand. All the above are service
ringers and this was their first peal of Major.

NEWPORT. MONMOUTHSHIRE.
THE LLANDAFF DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Tuesday, June 7, 1921, in Thee Hours and Eight Minutes,
At the Church of St. Woolos,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;

Hkywood’'s Variation. Tenor 21 cwt. 2 gr. 26 Ib.

Wilby J. Hazell ...Treble Charles Greedy 5
John W. Jones ... 2 Fred Atwell 6
John Thomas 3 Fred Chamberlain w7
Arthur E. Morgan 4 W illiam Phillips ... Tenor

Cbnducted by John Thomas.
= First peal of Stedman on the bells.  Arranged for the ringers of
the treble and 3rd, who hail from Edmonton.

SIBSEY. LINCOLNSHIRE.
THE LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.

(Eastern Branch.)
On Thursday, June 9, 1921, in Three Hours and Nine Minutes,
At the Church of St. Maligaret.
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5040 CHANGES;
Tenor 14 cwt.

«John Pbillits ... ... Treble 1*Alex Sharpe .. 5
Fred Hilton ... .2 | John W. Lakin, jun. .. 6
Herbert Taylor 3 | Fredrick Leggott.. e 7
George Coleman 4 ] Rupert Richardson.. ...Tenor

Composed by Nathan J. Pitstow. Conducted by R. Richardson.
< First peal of Major. First peal by the above branch since it has
been reorganised.

IRTHLINGBOROUGH. NORTHANTS.
THE CENTRAL NORTHAMPTONSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, June 11, 1921, in Three Hours.
At the Church of St.
A PEAL OF STEDMAH TRIPLES,
Heywood's Transposition of Thurstansl
W alter Perkins ... Treble

Peter,
5040 CHANGES;

Tenor 10Acwt
William Farey

William Rogers . e 2 John T. Hensman 6
W illiam E. Attbrbury .. 3 W illiam J. Allen 7
W'illiam R. Parker......... 4 Alfred Monk .. Ter.tr

Conducted by William J. Allen.
This peal was specially arranged and rung as a birthday compliment
to the conductor.

LEICESTER.
THE MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION.
(St. John-the-Divine Society.)
On Saturday, June 11, 1921, in Three Hours and Ten Minutes.
On the Royal Bells of St. John-the-Divine,
A PEAL OF SUPERLATIVE SURPRISE MAJOR, 5056 CHANCES;

Memorial

Tenor 21 cwt. in E.

Mrs. T. Henry Hardy ..Treble T . Henry Hardy ....... 5
*Fred Kilbourn........... e 2 *H. Edward Norman ... 6
"Miss Hilda W illson ... 3 James Harris .7
T homas Vallance ... .. 4 W illiam W illson ... Tenor

Composed and Conducted by William W illson.
* First peal in the method. This is the first Surprise peal rung in
Leicester by a Leicester band. All the above belong to St. John’s
Society. It was the conductor's 250th peal.
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HOGHTON, NEAR PRESTON, LANCASHIRE.
THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.

(Blackburn Branch.)
On Saturday. June 11, 1921, in Tluee Hours and Seven Minutes,
At the Chdrch of the Holy Trinity,
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5040 CHANGES;
Annable’'s T hree-part. Tenor 13J cwt.

Author Tomlinson ..Treble ’'John Sanderson 5
'Tom Stancliffe " 2 John W atson ... 6
"Arthur Chamberlain ... 3 "Leonard R ostron .7
'Fred Chambers ... 4 Laurence J. Williams ..Tenor

Conducted by L. J. Williams.

* First peal in the method. First peal in the method as conductor.
Ringers of Ist, 2nd. 3rd and 4th are of St. Michael's, Blackburn, 5th
and 6tli of the Parish Church, Blackburn, and 7th and Sth from
Churcb Kirk.

ERDINGTON, WARWICKSHIRE.

* THE ST. MARTIN'S GUILD FOR THE DIOCESE OF
BIRMINGHAM AND
THE WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION.
(Northern Branch.)
On Saturday, June 11, 1921, in Three Hours and Five Minutes,
At the Church of St. Barnabas,
A PEAL OF LONDON SURPRISE MAJOR, 5024 CHANGES;
Tenor 15J cwt.
Treble George F¥* Swann 5
Thomas J. Salter 2 Samuel Grove
Charles Dickens . 3 Alfred Davies
John Bass . 4 Robert Matthews .
Composed by F. Bennett. Conducted by R.M atthews.
Rung on the festival of St. Barnabas, the Patron Saint of the Church

Wiilliam Short ...

SOUTHAMPTON.
THE WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.

On Saturday, June 11, in Three Hours atid Thirty-One Minutes,
At the Church op St. Mary,

A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;

Holt s Ten-part. Tenor 22 cwt. 1 gr. 7 Ib. in E flat.
“Ernest Tall ___ ...Treble Herbert H. Payne....... 5
John W. Faithfull... ... 2 iOwen H. Giles 6
"Leonard C. Best ... ... 3 George Williams . T
Reginald Brown I 4 Oliver Gollop ... Tenot

Conducted by George Williams.
t-First peal of Giandsire. First peal of Grandsire on
Rung as a birthday compliment to the ringer of the tenor.

mFirstpeal.
the bells.

BURTON LATIMER. NORTHANTS.
THE CENTRAL NORTHAMPTONSHIRE ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday, June 11, 1921, in Three Hours and Ten Minutes,
At the Church of St. Mary the Virgin,
< PEVI OF DOUBLE NORWICH COURT BOB MAJOR, 5184 CHANCES;
Tenor 10J cwt.

=Reginald C. Lovbday ..TFieble ' Cyril Willson 5
G eorge Basford ... 2 Charles W. Clarke.... 6
Henry W. Gayton... 3 John R. Main
Hapr\ Meadows 4 George Lines

Composed by G. Lindoff. Conducted by G. Lines.
First peal in the method as conductor and first attempt. * 6othpeal.
TARPORLEY, CHESHIRE.
THE CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.
(The Crewe Society.)
On Saturday, June 11, 1921, in Three Hours and Ten Minutes,
At the Church of St. Helen,

A PEAI OF DOUBLE NORWICH COURT BOB MAJOR, 5040 CHANCES;
Tenor 10 cwt. 10 Ib.

W illiam T. Holding ..Treble Albert Crawley ... 5
Harry F. Holding ... . 2 Harry Overton 6
R chard D. Langford ... 3 James H. Riding .7
George H. Crawley .. 4 Richard T. Holding.. ...Tenor

Composed by W. Royle. Conducted by James H. Riding.

First peal in the method on the bells and by all the band, also by
the Crewe Society. First peal of Major as conductor. All the band
are employed by the L. & N.W .R. Co., and this is believed to be the
first peal in the method rung by employees of the same firm.
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FRESSINGFIELD, SUFFOLK.
THE NORWICH AND IPSWICH ASSOCIATION.

0> Saturday, June 11, 1921, in Three Hours,
At the Church of SS. Peter and Paul,
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5040 CHANGES;
Tenor 17J cwt. in F.

Ernest Lincoln... ...Trebdle ' Robert Rayner ... ... ... §
Robert Riches ... z James Riches ... C
Charles F. Sayer 3 W alter Riches... 7
Charles F. Woods * Albert Riches ...Tenor

Composed by Il. Hubbard.

SIX BELL PEALS.
WALTHAM, LINCOLNSHIRE.
THE YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Wednesday, June 1, 1921, in Two Hours and Fifty-Nine Minutes,
At the Church of Al Saints,
A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANGES;

Being two 720's each of Oxford and Kent Treble Bob, and
three 720's of Plain Bob. Tenor 12 cwt

Conducted by Albert Riches.

Arthur B. Shepherd ...Treble Ralph S. Long 4
Charles Kensington Charles W. Taylor 5
John W. Seamer William Bolton ...Tenor

Conducted by J. W. Seamer.
Rung in honour of the wedding of Miss Hilda Grace Horn, daughter
of the Rector and Mrs. Horn, which took place that day.

STRETTON GRANDISON, HEREFORDSHIRE.
THE HEREFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Sunday, June 5, 1921, in Tuv Hours and Forty-Five Minutes,
At the Church of St. Lawrence,
A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANGES;

Being 720 each of College Single, Canterbury and Grandsire, and tw9<
each of Oxford Single Bob and Plain Bob. Tenor 11 cwt.

Henry J. Taylor Ttelle William Ranford ... 4
David Horne 2 William H. Williams .. 5
Charles Layton 3 Charles Edwards Tenor

Conducted by Charles Edwards.
* First peal of Minor on the bells.

WALLASEY, CHESHIRE.*
THB CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.

(Wirral Branch.)
On Tuesday, June 7, 1921, in Two Hours and Fifty Minutes.
At the Church of St. Hilary,
A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANGES;

Being two 720's each of Oxford and Kent Treble Bob, Oxford Single
Bob, and 720 of Plain Bob. Tenor 12 cwt.

Smith W ood Treble William W ilcox 4
Stanley Strong... 2 Thomas A. Rogers 5
James R. Griffin 3 John W alters .. Tenor

Conducted by W . Wilcox.

Rung as a birthday compliment to Mr. G. Rogers, who was 60 years

of age on the 4th inst. Much regret was felt at Mr. Rogers inability

to take part ouing to illness, and the band wish to express their grati-

tude to him for the kind and generous manner in which he entertained
them on Saturday.

BRETFORTON, WORCESTERSHIRE.
THE WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION.

(Southern Branch.)
On Wednesday, June 8, 1921, in Two Hours and Fifty-Seven Minutes,
At the Church of St.

A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANGES;

Being 720 each of Oxford and Kent Treble Bob, Double Oxford.
College Single, Oxford Bob, Canterbury Pleasure and Plain Bob.
Tenor n j cwt.

‘Raymond Jelfs ..o Treble John Hall.eien,

IThomas Hands 2 fJoiiN E. Perkins

fSTANLEY WaYMAN 3 Leonard J. Jelfs
Conducted by Leonard J. Jelfs.

* First peal, t First peal in seven methods. First peal as con-
ductor. Rung as a wedding compliment to Miss Beatrice E. Blake,
the only daughter of the Rev. Canon J. E. H. Blake, Vicar of
Bretforton, who on the previous day was married to Lieut -Colonel
A. J. Child. O.B.E , M C.

Leonard.
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BRIDSTOW, HEREFORDSHIRE.
THE HEREFORD DIOOESAN GUILD.
On Tuesday, June 7, 1921, in Two Hours and Fifty-Eight Minutes,
. At the Parish Chdrch,
A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANGES;
Being 720 each of Cambridge Surprise, Oxford Treble Bob, Kent
Treble Bob. Double Oxford and Single Oxford (spliced), Double Bob
and Plain Bob (spliced), College Single and Canterbury Pleasure.
Tenor 9 cwt.
...Treble James B lake .. 4
E dward Sdmmers ... 5
W illiam Poston... ...Teno

Conducted by W. Poston.

HANDBELL PEALS

ROSS, HEREFORDSHIRE.
THE HEREFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Saturday, May 28, 1921, in Two Hours and Twelve Minutes,
At the Residence op Mr. J. Clark, Chase Road,

A PEAL OF BOB MINOR, 5040 CHANGES;
Being seven different 720’s.
Thomas W. Row ley ... 1 Alfred T. PorLTON
John Bevan 2 John Clark........
W illiam T. Poston ... 3 W illiam Poston...
Conducted by W. Poston.
Mrs. Clark and Mr. J. Millington.

John Clark...
John Bevan... .
William T. Poston

Witnesses:

HARWICH, ESSEX.
THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.
On Friday, June 10, 1921, in Two Hours and Thirty-Seven Minutes,
At 5, King’s Head Street,
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR,

Tapped on handbells by
Arthur T. Morris.
Composed by Gabriel Lindoff. Conducted by the performer.
Umpire: George Jordan. Wftness : Charles Jordan.

5088 CHANGES;

THE FREEMASONS' PEAL.
CEREMONY AT ST. CLEMENT DANES.

including members of the Central Council, attended
«he service at St. Clement Danes Church in the evening after the
Council meeting 0:1 Whitsun Tuesday, when the handsome marble
.ablet recording the first Freemasons’' peal, was unveiled and dedi-
cated. Tho Rector (the Rev. W. Pennington Bickford) had arranged
a most beautiful musical service, and the church presented a festal
appearance with the Whitsuntide decorations still in place. The
Rector conducted the service, and the lesson, which was Longfellow’s
familiar symbol of the bell in * The Golden Legend, was read by
Canon Coleridge.

During the singing of a hymn, tho clergy and choir, accompanied
the* Bishop of Willesden and Alderman J. S. Pritchett, Presiding
Ringing Master of St. Martin’s Guild, Birmingham (one of the leading
ifaeons of the country), to the tower, where the tablet has been erected
on the staircase leading to the gallery.

Alderman Pritchett unveiled the" tablet, and the dedication was per-
formed by the Bishop, who afterwards preached an impressive sermon.

The memorable service closed with tlie bell hymn (written by Mrs.
Bickford, and set to music by the Rector), sung by the congregation
kneeling.

The handsome tablet which has been given by Bro. G. R. Fardon,
the composer aud conductor of the peal, has the masonic emblem of
compasses and square at the top, surmounting the motto ‘* Nisi Dominus
frustra." It records the peal of 5003 'Grandsire Caters rung on Thurs-
day, December 4th, 1919. by the Ancient Society of College Youths
and the Ancient Free and Accepted Masons of Eugland, ‘' as a peace
peal to celebrate the conclusion of the Great. War.” It was the first
peal ever rung by Freemasons, and the names, with the rank and
lodge of each ringer (which appeared in ‘ The Ringing World ' at the
time). are set out, the name of the Rector, who is Chaplain of St.
Clement Danes Lodge, being also added.

Many ringers,

NAMED.

At, St. Thomas' Parish Church, Norbury, Cheshire. 720 of the 4tli's
Place Delight method (No. 3), published on page 14 of the Central
®euneil Collection, was rung by: J. A. Milner 1, J. P. Fidler 2, Rev.
A. T. Beeston ~conductor) 3. F. Holt 4. J. Fernley 5, J. W. Hartley
€ This was the first 720 rung in the method, and is to I> called
4 Abbeyville.’
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A LINCOLNSHIRE TRIP.

Pleasant recollections will remain with all those who, on Whit-
Mpnday took part in the outing organised by the Gainsborough Pai i
Church Ringers’ Guild. The party, which numbered 27 (including
the ringers, with their wives, families aud frionds, also the Rev. E.
V. Clapton, one of tho assistant clergy, and Mr. Farndon, school-
master), travelled by motor charabanc, and firet made for Nettlehnm,
vigtt Harpswell Hill. After a most enjoyable run of about_95 minutes,
during which time Fillingham Castle, Scamptou and Carlton Aero-
dromes, Riseholme Palace, and other places of interest were obse: fed,
the party reached their destination, where the ringers had several
touches on the bells, while others strolled round the village, and in-
spected the interesting church and institute, or had a chat with the
Vigar (the Rev. S. Stamp), who was formerly one of the assistant
clergy at Holy Trinity Church, Gainsborough. Leaving next lor
Scothorne a halt was made for lunch by the wayside. On arrival at
Scothorne the party were welcomed by the Vicar’'s son, who, by the
way, is himself a ringer and had a pull with the visitors. The
church is a very nice building, and those who visited the vestry had
the opportunity of inspecting some magnificent copes and vestments.
Dunholme was the next place O0ll the list, and the bells had cot long
been going before the Vicar (the Rev. S. Wild) put in his appear-
ance. He gave the visitors a hearty welcome, and took part n a lix-
Score of Doubles. The church is very pretty, and, amongst e*ther
things, contains some exceedingly fine carving, especially an oak screen
at the west end, which is entirely the work of the Vicar. The fourth
and last place of call 0l the programme was Welton. Here the Vicar
(the Rev. A. Hunt) was waiting to welcome the party at the Vicarago
and announced that tea was ready. The visitors feel that they :"e v
very deep debt of gratitude to the Rev. and Mrs. Hunt for their
kindness, and also to the captain of the Welton ringers for the ex-
cellent manner in which the necessary arrangements had been mafic.
After tea, the Vicar took a portion of the party to places of interest
in the Vicarage grounds, one being a spring of water, which, according
to an old custom, had been dressed and decorated Oll Ascension Day.
Subsequently he gave a most interesting and instructive address on
the history of Welton, from the early days down to the present time.
He also conducted them round the church, and they were able to n-
spect one of the prettiest and most'interesting edifices in tie county.
The object' of interest are too many to be enumerated here, but one
may mention the very fine window recently dedicated by the Lord
Bishop of Lincoln in honour of the officers and men of the Royal Air
Force who fell in the great war. Touches were rung on the bells, and
the party then wended their way back to the Vicarage to commerce
their homeward journey, when to their .very pleasant surprise they
found an ample supply of refreshments and coffee awaiting 'hem.
Three hearty cheers were given for the Vicar as the party set off tor
Gainsborough, via Till Bridge Lane, Sturton, Stow and Willingham.
The weather was everything that could be desired, and the outing a
real success. Each of the four towers contains an exoellent and well-
going ring of six bells, and included in the day's ringing, which in-
sisted of the standard methods, were the following: At Nettleham, 720
Boh Minor, in 25 mins.: C. Il. Baker 1, J. T Bartram 2, P. Noble 3,
H. Morgan 4. J. T. Ladd (conductor) 5. W. Cooper 6. At Dunholme,
720 Kent Treble Bob Minor: F. S. W. Butler (conductor) 1. J. T.
Bartram 2. H. Morgan 3, G. H. Baker 4. J. T. Ladd 5. W. Cooper 6,
J. Dixon 7, A. Hewitt 8. Members of the local companies also took
part in various touches with the visitors. The best thanks are due
to the incumbents for the use of the bells: the Rev. and Mrs. H int and
the captain of the Welton ringers for their very kind reception and
generosity: also to all those who helped towards making the outing
=0 pleasant and enjoyable.

A SILVER WEDDING.

A pleasing little ceremony took place at St. Martin's Coffee Room.
Dorking, on the evening of Thursday. .May 26th, on the occasion of
the silver wedding of 'Mr. and Mrs. William Lynch, of Pixham, Perk-
ing. Mr. Lynch is one of the oldest members of Dorking St. Maitin's
Guild of Ringers, and is deservedly held in great esteem by his fellow
ringers for his unfailing amiability and readiness to help, as well as
for his punctuality and regularity at practice. He is quite an indis-
pensable member of the baud Mr. and Mrs. Lynch were entertained
to tea by the Iforkine ringers, nnd Mr. Lynch was presented with a
handsome pipe and tobacco pouch, and Mis. Lynch with a pair of sil-
ver and glass salt cellars and spoons.

The presentation was made by the Rev. George Adams, Senior Curate
of St-. Martin’'s, who. with the Rev. J. Twist and the churchwardens,
were prosent to congratulate Mr. and Mrs. Lynch on having been
spared to complete 25 years of happy married life together. It hnd
been decided to celebrate the happy event with a peal, but the ar-
rangements fell through at the last minute owing to unforeseen cir-
cumstances. It. is hoped, however, that the peal will come cff nt no
distant date. .
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KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.

A Quarterly meeting of tho Rochester District was held at Uod-
mersham on Saturday. June 4th, and members took full advantage
of the opportunity to visit this very pretty spot, the church lying at
the extreme end of the district. The tower contains a ring of six, anil
the hells were going shortly after 3. Many methods up to Cambridge
Surprise were rung, and a short service was held, conducted by the
curate (the Rev. Taylor-Jonos). A collection at the close for tho
Countv War Memorial realised j£1. s , TL

The ringers were then conducted to the \icarage, where the \
(the Rev. Hon. A. T. »S Massey), a life member of the association, had
invited tiiem to tea, which was served amid beautiful surro«ndings in
th? lar"e hall. Forty-six ringers put in an appearance, and those who
hnd not sent in their names were fortunate, as the Vicar, porliaps
having an inner knowledge of the apathy of some ringers in this re-
spect had provided for nearly double the number who had intimated
Hie. would attend. Even then there was 4enough and to spare.’—The
vemerable Vicar, in a few words, welcomed the ringers to his parish,
and reminded them that the visit that day coincided with the official
birthday of H.M. the King. He said how fond he was of the bells,
and urged upon all ringers to remember that their first duty was their
‘ Call to God. He had not been able to be at the service, but would
be pleased to make up their collection to 25s.

The Vicar presided at the meeting which followed, the only business
of importance being to fix a place for the annual district meeting.—
On the proposition of the District Secretary, it was unanimously re-
solved that Rochester Cathedral with its new ring of ten be chosen,
the date in August being left for the secretary to arrange.—Mr. F.
M Mitchell proposed a hearty vote of thanks to the Vicar for the use
of th* I>ells and the excellent tea he had provided, and to the Rev.
Tavlor-Jones for conducting the servioe, and in addition, playing the
C"2in.—This was carried with applause, and each suitably responded.
The Vicar then invited the visitors to a walk through the Vicarage
grounds, which were greatly admired. The tower was again visited,
and members on their homeward run were given the opportunity of
having a ring on the eight at Sittingbourne. and methods from Grand-
sirc- tf Cambridge Major were rung. Twelve towers in the district
were represented, and there were visitors from Canterbury district.

THE DEATft OF MISS MACALPIXE LENY.

A meeting of the Tonbridge District was held at Hadlow on Satur-
da . May 28th, and was attended by nearly 30 members. Some good
/m Tctice in Grand.sire and Stedman Triplets, Plain Bob, Treble Bob
and Double Norwich Major was obtained. The Association Form was
used at the service, and Mr. Cecil Groves (a former member of the
ioca! band) presided at the organ. There were several of the parish-
ioner." present, including one of the churchwardens.—The Vicar (the
Rev. S. H. Monypennyi conducted the service, and gave a short ad-
dre>' The members afterwards adjourned to the King's Head for
tea, which was followed by the business meeting. The Vicar presided,
supported by tho Rev. F. L. Schrieber (Vicar of Shipbourne).

The District Secretary said that it was with deep regret he had to
announce the death of their old and esteemed friend (Miss R. Mac-
Alpine Leny), 'Which took place at Speldhurst Close, Sevenoaks, on
April 25th. He recalled the many occasions when the members hal
me*, at Spcldhurst aud had partaken of Miss Leny’s hospitality.
Ringers were always welcome at any time at Speldhurst. The Dis-
trict Secretary said that as soon as lie heard the news he wrote to Mrs.
Mackinnon (the late Miss kenv’'s Bister) expressing, on behalf of the
members their deepest sympathy, and he read the reply which he had
received.—The members, while fully endowing the action of the dis-
trict secretary, desired to .pass the following resolution, viz.: * That
this meeting of the members of the Tonbridge district learn with the
deepest regret of the death of their old and much esteemed friend.
Miss Leny, and desire to express their deepest sympathy with her re-
latives.’—This was carried in silence

Several new members were elected, and it was decided that the next
meeting at Hawkhurst should be held on Saturday, July 23rd.—The
District Secretary said he hoped that members would make a special
effort to attend this meeting, as it was not often that a meeting could
I>e arranged at the tower. Ais the church was over two miles from the
railway station the best way to reach it would be to charter a motor
charabanc to start from Tonbridge Station, going by way of Lamber-
Ixirst, picking up members en route. He was willing to do this pro-
vided the members assisted him, as he must have a guarantee of
sufficient, number to cover the cost. The meeting would be advertised
in * The Ringing World ' three weeks previously, and members must
notify him at leatst a fortnight before the date of the meeting, so that
he- could make the necessary arrangements. The Hawkhurst mem*
I>er' were very anxious to have a meeting at their tower, and the
a=v--ciatioii would be sure of a hearty welcome.

Votes of thanks were paa”™ed to the Vicar for the use of the bells,
for arranging tho service and presiding at the meeting; to the or-
ganist and others who had assisted at the service, and to the Rev. F.
T». ~chrieber for his attendance. The membens then adjourned to the
tower, where ringing -was again indulged in.
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A NOTTINGHAM MEMORIAL PEAL.

DEDICATION OF BASFORD HELLS.

In the tower of the old Parish Church of St. Leodigarius, Basford.
Notts there now hangs a melodious ring of bells, eight m number,
which’ have been installed as a memorial to the 220 gallant dead of the
distriot who fell in the war. Tho bells were cast at the famous
Loughborough foundry, and are tuned on Messrs. Taylor's scientific
systom of perfect, harmonical tuning. It may be remarked that this
is the first peal in the immediate vicinity of Nottingham that is so
tuned on this perfect™ system, and the superiority of these beauti-
ful bells over the mediocre peals which are to be beard in and around
Nottingham is most marked. The three old hells which formerly hung
in the tower, although possessing claims to considerable antiquity,
were so false in their harmonic tones as to he distressingly unmusical
in effect, and the music of the new peal will be thus more noticeable
and appreciated by the parishioners. It may be mentioned in passing
that these three old bolls, two of which are melted down and incor-
porated in the new peal, were all east in Nottingham, and the oldest
hell of the three, dating probably from about 1490, was almost certainly
cast by the founder, Richard Mellour. who was an Alderman and Mayor
of Nottingham in the years 1499 and 1506. This oldest bell has t>een
retained on account of its particularly interesting history, and now
forms an important archaeological feature of the church.

The tenor of the new ring of eight weighs about 15 cwt., note F
natural, and the total weight of the bells and fittings, etc., is over
10 tons." The fittings in which the hells are hung are of modern design,
and contain all the many improvements that have been introduced by
Messrs. Taylor, perhaps the most important being the patent bah
bearings in which the bells swing. The framework is of strong and
massive construction, of cast iron on stout steel foundation, all de-
signed with a view to the strain placed on the structure of the towar
being reduced to an absolute minimum. Needless to say the work
has been carried out in a manner which fully upholds the great re-
putation of the Loughborough firm.

The inscriptions on the belt are as follow:—

Treble.—Given bv Charles Hilton Seelv and Frank Evelvn Seely,
1921.

2nd.—This bell is tlie offering of the Sunday Schools. Bible Classes.
Scout*; and Guides of lhe Parish nnd their friends, 1921.

3rd.—Fresented by the Adult Members of the Choir. 1921.

4th.—Presented by the Clergy, Churchwardens and Sidesmen of Bas-
ford Parish Church, 1921.

5th.—In Loving Memory of Thomas Marriott, who died 1917.
by his children, 1921.

6th.—In Memory of William Henry Hill, M.B.. C.M.. whodied March
17th, 1915, during the Great War. and of Arthur Robert Cox. who
served in tho South African War. 1899—1902, and who died April 7th.
1916.

7th.—Presented by Parishioner, Congregation and other friends ->f
the Parish of Basford, 1921.

Tenor.—In Affectionate Remembrance of Captain William Eaton
Guy Walker and Lieut. Harry Cullis Steele Walker, of the Sherwood
Foresters, sons of Major and Mils. Walker, Rock House. Old Basford
who fell in France in tho Great War, 1914-1918. For God, King and
country. This bell also bears.the badge of the Sherwood Forester*

The dedication took place at a ' rgely nttended service on Saturday.
June 4th, the ceremony being performed by the Rev. H. T. llayman
Chaplain of the ‘ Robin Hoods," while the service was conducted (in
the unavoidable absence of the Vicar, through the serious illness of
his wife) by the Rev. C. W. Good, of St. Augustine's New Basford
who was a combatant, officer of the regiment during tNie war prior to
his ordination. The service was of a very impressive character, and
was concluded by ' The Last Post ‘ and 4 Reveille,” followed by the
National Anthem. The opening ringing at the dedication was done by
members of St. Peter's band, Nottingham, viz.: W. Flinders 1, T
Kirkby 2, R. Clifford 3, G. West 4, J. Wallace 5. H. R. Cobben 6. F
C. Vickers 7. E. Hughes 8. The' first touch of 564 Grandsire Triples
was conducted by H. R. Cobben, the second, also Grandsire Triples by
R. Clifford. The first toucTi of Stedmnn Triples, 567, was conducted
by W. C. Hunt.

On the following day. for evening service, the first quarter-peal of
Grandsire Triples was rung on the new bells hy the Nottineham St
Peter's ringers, in 40 mins.: W. Flinders 1, T. Kirby 2. W. .1 Sevier
(Master and lowerJcecprr, Basford) 3. R. Clifford 4, G. Wcwt 5, J
Wallace 6. H. R. Coblien (conductor) 7, F. C. Vickers 8.

Given

BEDFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.

A most successful meeting was held at Great Staughton on Satur-
day, June 11th. Members were present from Bedford, Clapham,
Bromham. Turvey, Elstow. Roxton. Biggleswade, Dunstable, Highatn
Ferrers, Finedon, and the local company, 24 sitting down to tea.—Tim
Vicar (the Rev. J. W. Wraggl gave the ringers a hearty welcome, and
at the business meeting which followed, with Miss E. Steel in tho
chair, two new life members were' elected, aijd Wootton chosen for
the next meeting.—A vote of thanks to the Vicar for the use of the
bells brought a very pleasant meeting to a close.
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BUFFERS ON BELL CLAPPERS.
To the Editor.

Dear Sir,—With reference to the account in your last issue relating
to Hie dedication of the two trebles to complete the octave at Bispham,
Lancs, and more particularly to the parngruph referring to the new
clapper device brought out by us, | should like to state, as this is the
lirst time the idea has been mentioned, that the principle is not ourB.
The principle was originated by Mr. Weadon sen., tbe much respected
captain of the Hartford, Kent, Society of Ringers. Mr. Wheadon
first applied the idea to tlie old tenor at Dartford, and was very grati-
fied to notice the improvement in the effect. A few* years later, when
the bells wero recast, he applied it to tbe back four successfully. He
subsequently very kindly gave me permission to protect and adopt
the idea in a slightly different form. We have used the principle in a
few cases recently, and the result has been perfectly satisfactory,
but any credit attaching to the idea ought to be given to
Mr. Wheadon, to whom | am glad to tako this opportunity of tender-
ing my best thanks. Tho difference in tho two methods is as follows:
Al Dartford the buffers are fitted to the stem of tbe clapper just
under the ball, and in those we have fitted they are iu the ball just
above the striking part.—Yours faithfully,

ALBERT A, HUGHES
(of Mears and Stajnbank).

OLD LAVENHAM RINGER'S DEATH.

We regret to record the death of Mr. William Moore, of Lavenham,
who passed away O0ll May 28th, at the age of 75 years. Although de-
ceased had long been a sufferer, and had undergone many operations,
I had only taken to his bed a week previously. Nearly 20 years have
passed since he took any part in ringing, owing to ill-health. He had
rung four peals, all at Lavenham, and all Oll the tenor. They com-
prised three peals of firandsire and one of Bob 'Major. The first was
rung Ol March 2rd, 1888, and the last Oll November 3rd, 1894.

The interment took place Oll Wednesday, June 11th, and the bearers
included one of liis old ringing company, Mr. Il. Smith, while Mr.
A. Symonds and his son, Stcdman, were among the mournerB. The
deceased leaves a widow and two sons to mourn their loss.

In tho evening, after the funeral, a quarter-peal of Grandsire Triples
(1.260 changes) was rung, with deeply muffled clappers, as a last, mark
of respect: M. Symonds 1, W. R. J. Poulson 2, S. Il. Symonds (con-
ductor) 3, F. Leeks 4, F. Boreham 5, W. W. J. Roper 6, L. Leeks 7,
A. Symonds 8.

John Tay
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KINGTON MAGNA RINGERS' EXCURSION.

On Saturday, May 28th, the ringers of Kington Magna, Dorset, had
an enjoyable outing to Queen Camel, Somerset. After raising ano
lowering the bells of their own church, a party of nine, including the
Master and secretary of tho Salisbury Guild, set forth by motor
brake at 2.30 p.m. A halt was made at the village of Holton to in-
vestigate the possibilities of change ringing there, but as inquiry
elicited the fact that the bells wero only three in number, it was
decided to proceed. A slight detour from the main road brought the
party to the pretty village of South Cadbury, where the Rector readily
gave permission to ring, and a tuneful peal of five bells wore soon
raisod and set going to Grandsire Doubles.

The road was resumed, and after a short drive the car drew
up beside the stately tower of Queen Camel, with its glorious ring of
6 bells (tenor 36 cwt. 3 qr.). The bells were raised iu peal, and after a
Plain Course of Grandsirc some rounds and call changes gave the
less advanced members of the party a chance of trying their skill. The
Vicar (the Rev. G. D'Angibau) made his appearance in the belfry,
and after giving the visitors a kindly welcome, showed some of them
round the grand old church, with itis venerable monastic traditions,
while others were taking turns at the bells.

An adjournment was made to th« Mildmay Arms, where an ample
repast was provided by mine host and his good lady for the satisfac-
tion of the inner-man. Fortified by this refreshment, the change
ringers of the band brought round some well-struck six-scores, con-
ducted by A. I. Dowding. About 8 p.m. the bells were rung down,
and a late visit was paid to the neighbouring village of Marston
Magna, where, with the Rector’'s kind permission, a little more ring-
ing was done on six very melodious bells, tuned on the five-tone prin-
ciple. The return journey was then commenced, home being reached
about 10.30 p.m., after an expedition long to be remembered.

Before the departure from Queen Camel, Mr. Lucas, landlord of the
Mildmay Arms, sprang a surprise on two of the party by producing a
photograph of a well-known band of ringers at Guildford, and inform-
ing them that one of them wais his step-brother, Mr. A. H. Pulling.
Even tbe ringing world is a small world! ,

LONG PEAL CELEBRATED.

The 29th anniversary of the long peal of Oxford Treble Bob at
Debenham, in which D. Collins and W. G. Crickmer took part, was
celebrated at Worlingworth, Suffolk, on Monday. June 6th, by a 960
Oxford Treble Bob, bv: W. Miller 1. H. W. Crickmer 2, E. Curtiss 3.
W. G. Crickmer (conductor) 4, R. Abbott 5, E. Jinkins 6, W. Ruffells
7, H. Hall 8; and 640, with S. Collins on the tenor.

lor & Co.,
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MEABS &
STAINBANK.

IBellfounders

Foundry
Established
A.D. 1670

(12th year
of reign of
Elizabeth),

and
jBellhangers,

32 & 34, Whitechapel Road

LONDON, E.1.

Wesiminsier Abbey Bells

Augmented, Tuned and
Rehung, A.D. 1919.

St. Clement Danes

(10 bells) Tuned and
Rehung, A.D. 1919.

ESTIMATES SUBMITTED

Recasting, Retuning and Rehanging.

HANDBELLS

In Sets of any number.

BELL ROPES, MUFFLES, &c.
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BELFRY GOSSIP.

Now that, the postage rates have been further increased associations
will find it cheaper, as well as being, as it always has been, more
effective to advertise their meetings in 1 Tho Kinging World.’

The memorial to the late Mr. Henry White, of Bafciugstoke, which
was unveiled and dedicated at St. Michael's Church, iu the presence
of a largo gathering of Winchester Guild ringers, bears the following
inscription: * To the glory of God and iy grateful memory of Henry
White, sexton and captain of I>ell ringers in St. Michael's tower, 188
1918, who laboured with uutiring zeal for the mImprovement of bell
ringing nnd the cultivation of the art of change ringing. Died Sept.
27th, 1918, aged 61 years.’

The peal rung at Wallasey, on June 7th, was a well deserved tribute
to Mr. G. R. Rogers, who has done much for the encouragement of
ringing in the district in which lie resides. About 12 years ago the
bells of St. Hilary's had fallen into a very dilapidated ooutution. so
much so that to ring, them constituted a danger. Mr. ttogeits, besides
being a large subscriber, personally made a house-to-house collection,
and eventually obtained sufficient funds to have the bells rehung. Al-
though not an anient peal ringer, Mr. Rogers has done much espade-
work " ill the tutoring of lieginners, and has endeavoured to inculcate
the spirit of progress and unity amoiufst all those ringers with whom
he is in touch.

Mesfcrs. Taylor and Co., of Loughborough, have completed the re-
storation of -Monk's Kirby bells, and added two trebles to make the
octave. The old six have been retuned, and are hung in iron frames
on steel girders. The bells were dedicated on Thursday in last week
by the Bishop of Coventry.

It is much hoped that when the Oxford Guild war memorial tablet
is unveiled in the Cathedral cloisters on the occasion of the anuual
festival at Oxford, on July 23rd, it will be free of debt. Contribu-
tions should be sent to the lion, general secretary as soon as possible.
Mr. Hibbert wishes to remind membors that notices of motion for the
business meeting must reach him by the last day of June.

Correspondents should bear in mind that matter sent for Press cau-
not now be forwarded by halfpenny post. The postage, when the
matter is senl ill an open envelope and without any form of letter,
is one penny.

An appeal is being made for funds for the restoration of the bells of
Bewdley Parish Church. Worcestershire. The rehanging is to be car-
ried out. by Messrs. Chas. Carr, of Smethwick, and some structural
repairs are also to be carried out to the tower and belfry, the total
cost being estimated at £350. Contributions will be welcomed, and
should be sent to the Rector, the Rev. H. A. Moore.

Bewdley bells have a long history. There is a record of them haviuf
been rung in 1589 at the rejoicings for the wreck of the Spanish
Armada, and in 1697 they were rung for the finst time for the 1 fifth
of November.’

A new ring of bells was purchased in -1660, and were hung in the
old chapel, built of timber, that stood on the site of the present
church. In 1745 this chapel was pulled down, and the existing tower
built. In 1780 the bells were recast and rehung, and there they have
remained to this day, equal to some of the best in the county.

A mosf, interesting little history of the bells of the Collegiate
Church, now the Cathedral of Southwell, has been written, <yid pub-
lished in celebration of the bicentenary of the bells.

Bells are fust mentioned in this ancient foundation lietwcen the
yeai*s 1050 and 1060, when there was a gift of two bells by the Arch-
bishop of Tork, and at intervals through tho centuries the bells are
mentioned again until 1721, when Abram Rudhall, of Gloucener, re-
cast the peal. The bells were again recast and increased to ten in
1897 by Messrs. Taylor and Co.

The history of the bells, which is full of interest, can be obtained
from G. K. Padgett, printor, Southwell, post free, price 6d. Last
Saturday the bicentenary was celebrated at Southwell by a visit of
Midland Counties ringers. «

NORWICH 6 IPSWICH ASSOCIATION.

On Saturday week a meeting of tlio Halesworth District of the
Norwich and Ipswich Association was held at Wenhaston. Good
touches of Oxford and Kent Treblo Bob, Bob Minor, Grandsire and
Stedman Doubles were rung on the musical peal of six bells at the
parish church. Members were present (including one lady ringer, Mrs.
Rcevets) from Halesworth, Henliam, Holton, Wissett Wenhaston,
Wrentham, Bramfleld and Brampton. The Vicar (the Rev. W. N.
Matthews, M.A.) provided tea in the old School Room for the ringers,
after which n short business meeting was held. The chair was taken
by Capt. A. E. Reeves, supported by Messns. J. Lnrtcr, J. Punchard,
J. Spencer, G. Kasthaugli. S. Ellis, F. C. Lambert (district secretary),
etc. It was decided to hold the next meeting at CratfiHd in Septem-
ber. if the bells are available. — A hearty vote of thanks was ac-
corded the Vicar for the use of tho bells" and for the capkal tea
Afterwards there was further ringing.
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THE CENTRAL COUNCIL.

(Continued from page 339.)
NEXT YEAR'S MEETING.

The President said the Standing Committee had considered the place
of next year’s meeting. The interruption of tho rota which had been
followed for many years had caused a break in their programme, but
the committee suggested that they should next go to Lincoln, leaving
for the following year some place west of the central Midlands-

Mr. Cotterill (Yorkshire Association) gave the Council an invitation
to go to Bradford.

The Rev. A. T. Beeston (Chester Diocesan Guild) proposed that the
meeting should be at Chester, which had many attractions, and where
it uad been previously suggested they should meet. Mr. J. Geo:
(lion, member) seconded.

Mr. A. E. Parsons (Worcestershire) reminded the Council that when
«Chester was previously suggested, Lincoln was also in the list.

On being submitted to the meeting the voting was as follows: Liii
coin, 31; Bradfortl, 5; Chester, 19. Lincoln was, therefore, decided
upon.

COUNCIL IGNORED BY ASSOCIATIONS.

Tho Council was then informed that two notices of motion had been
received too late to bo included in the agenda, but it was decided
that they should be considered.

Mr. A. H. Pulling (Winchester Guild) moved: « That this meeting
recommend all Guilds and Associations to hold their annual meetings
within three mouths previous to the Central Council meeting on Whit-
Tuesday." He proposed this, he said, as one means of endeavouring to
get the general body of members of the Exercise interested in the
work of tbe Council. At present they took not a scrap of notice of it
At many of the annual meetings not a word was spoken about the
Central Council, and, if they could judge from the reports in ' The
Ringing World ' they simply took 10 notice of it. The Associations
never submitted anything to the Council, but if they all had their
meetings just before the Council it might be possible to get them to
consider a little more of the Council’s business. It was for that rea-
son ho proposed they should recommend. the holding of annual meet-
ings within the three months previous to the Council meeting. There
was very littlo co-operation between the associations and the Council.
The Council was a sort of Cabinet, ' Tho Ringing World ' like ‘' The
Daily Mail,” and Mr. Goldsmith like Lord Northcliffe (loud laughter).
They might laugh, but if they had an Editor who was not out to do
all lie could to help them, but was opposed to them, he could break
that Council up, and lie could do it in quick time. They wanted to get
the Exercise to take more interest in the Council, and although he
hardly expccted they would pass his resolution, he thought it was
worth considering.

Mr. Cjive (Gloucester and Bristol) said he would second the motion
as a matter of form.

The Rev. B. Il. T. Drake (Herts County) moved as an amendment,
that the Secietarv of the Council be charged to send all resolutions
carried at the meeting to the affiliated associations. As a delegate to
that Council he had ventured to bring up questions at bis own associa-
tion meetings, and had been met at once with the answer, ‘' The
Central Council never so much as acknowledge us, beyond taking the
2s. 6d. from us, and never send us any information of anything they
have carried, but leave uf to find out from the ringiug Press what is
being done.” Would it not, therefore, be Better and simpler if the
secretary were to send the resolutions that were carried to the con-
stituent associations in order that they might know officially whit
had been done?

Mr. Bibhv (Chester Guild) said when he got back to his association
he would be expected at their first meeting to supply the members
mnith a report not only of the resolutions, but with minute details of
what had been done.

Tho President said he could not accept the Rev. B. H. T. Drake’s
motion as an amendment. It was a matter of which notice should ba
given.

Alderman Pritchett (hon. member) said he gathered the object was
to give publicity to the existence of the Central Council. He sug-
gested the Standing Committee should draw up a special form of
prayer for the Council to be used at association services, just as they
had a prayer for Parliament (laughter).

Canon Baker (Bedfordshire Association) objected to the use of the
term ‘ delegate ' in connection with the membens of that Council. He
said ho thought they were representatives. He would not be there
if 110 were expected to come as a delegate in the sense of being some-
body to voto as he was told. A member was elected freely, and should
vote as he thought best. He objected strongly to calling themselves
delegates. He also objected strongly to the suggestion that it was
the business of that Council to interfere with the affairs and ad-
ministration of association's. The Council had always kept most care-
fully off that in the past. The associations were perfectly free to man-
age their own business, without the interference of the Council, and
for that reason he could not support the resolution, because it cor-
tainly meant interference with the way in which associations and |
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guilds managed their own business and fixed the dates o* their own

mCanon3Elsee (Lancashire Association) said he felt the moveretrfthe
resolution had a desire only to get the associations to take a hung
interest in the work of the Council, but at the same time he hoped
ihe resolution would not be pressed. In his own association they had
just discussed at considerable length whether they should change the
time of their annual meeting, and after very careful consideration had
come to the conclusion that, they had better not change it  They had
their meeting in the autumn. It wan quite true that not much time
was given to the affairs of the Council, because U>«re was always a
2roat deal of local business to be got through, but as a matter of
interest he noticed that Lancashire had sent ite four members and one
honorary member to attend that meeting (hear, tear). He- also saw
two Lancashire visitors in the room as well, so that they lid take
some interest in the Council (hear, hear).

Mr Pulling said he was prepared to withdraw his motion tie
did not expect it would be passed, because he knew they could not
interfere with the associations, but if only they could get the Exercise
to wake up and look on the Council as the central body 0l ringing
the Council would do some good.

The resolution was then withdrawn.

BELL RESTORATION FUNDS.

The other resolution of which late notice had been given was one by
\lderman Chambers, of the Midland Counties Association, who had
intimated his intention of moving ‘ that it is desirable to establish
in the area of each ringing association a bell restoration tund :rom
which grants may be made for the restoration of any rings Ol bells
within the area when local funds wero insufficient to meet the cost-.

Alderman Chambers was absent from the meeting, and the 1resi-
dent said the Council had always refrained from interfering with the
business of the local associations. He took it that practically every
association had a fund of this kind, or was ready to make grants, and
he did not see that that Council could give instructions.

It was agreed to allow the motion to lie on the table.

THANKS.

The Rev. H. Law James moved a vote of thanks to the President,
which Canon Baker seconded, the resolution being carried with ap-
lause. .
P In responding, the President said he had intended moving that dui-
ing his term of office there should be no votes of thanks to anybody,
least of all to the President. He thanked them, however, very warmly
indeed. He was afraid, if in future years they were treated to dis-
cussions Ol various abstruse questions, such as they had heard in the
past from Mr. James and others, that he would have to call in to his
assistance certain ‘ assessors ' to direct him (laughter), because there
wew; some things far above his head. He was simply a plain, practi-
cal ringer, but it would be his earnest endeavour to uphold the dignity
of the Council as it was upheld bv its founder, and in this he was sure
he would have the assistance of the members (applause).

The meeting then terminated.

BLOCKING UP OF LOUVRES.
To the Editor-

Dear Sir,—In reply to Mr. Edwards, wooden boards covered with
waterproof felt placed immediately behind the louvres will moderate
the sound of the hells. It might be found sufficient to treat the louvres
in the tower in this manner first; those at the base of the spire could
be blocked in the same wav afterwards, if necessary.—Yours faith-
fully, H. B. WOOLLEY.

Long Stanton.

Dear Sir,—lI have had experience of blocking of louvres at three
towers in this town. At St John’s, which is a very low tower, with
six bells hung on a level with the louvres, there was frequent com-
plaint of the noise when the bells were rung. I advised having
shutters fitted up to the spring of the arch. This was done as fol-
lows: The necessary wood comprised lin. tongued and grooved boarile.
These were nailed lightly together crossways, with two layers of thick
folt between and fitted tight into the louvres. Our Vicar described
tbe effect as like using a mute on a fiddle, or the soft pedal on a
pianoforte.  We get little complaint now. At St. Helen's, which is
also a rather low tower, and situated in a densely populated neigh-
bourhood, the louvres were blocked up completely with match-board-
ing. There are scarcely any complaints now; in fact, the noise is so
toned down that tho bells can scarcely be heard a street away. At
All Saints’ (10 bells) the louvre* have I>een bricked up to the spring of
the arches, and to my mind there is scarcely any difference.

1l regard to All Saints’. Herefoid, as far as ono can judge, without
seeing the tower, | would suggest entirely blocking up the bottom
louvres with boards and felt, as at St. John’s, Worcester. If the
noise outside is very severe use extra felt. All the music of the bells
would then come out through the louvres in the spire.—Yours faith-
fully, W. PAGE.

37, St. John's, Worcester.
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*INERTIA.
To the Editor-

Dear Sir, *Inertia ' is a terra used to denote tho principle or law
of the material world, that all bodies are absolutely passive or in-
different to -. state of rest or motion, and would continue for ever
at rest. or peisevere in the samo uniform and rectilinear motion,
unless disturbed bv tlio action of somo extrinsic force Inel'ti*
J# (ino of the inherent properties of matter, and unceasingly recalled
to our observation in every incident of life.” It appears also to be one
of the inherent properties of ringer*, and gives a good deal of trouble
to the Analysis Committee.

Tho™o who read tho committee’6 report will remember the notice
of a peal published as rung by the ‘' Surrey County Association ' at
Brighton, and attributed to Surrey, though probably belonging to
Sussex. The committee could get no answer to a letter to the con-
ductor about it, and the secretary of one of the associations informed
n member of the committee that ho had not read the report! Evi-
dently there was need of some ‘ extrinsic force ' to disturb the state
of rest. But where is it to be found? Similarly. 110 further informa-
tion is forthcoming as to ilr. Pago’s claim to have conducted seven
peals, though only four were published. Perhaps he perseveres *‘ in
the same uniform and rectilinear motion ' in the matter of his claim,
which our 1 extrinsic force ' was «not sufficient to disturb.

Again, as to the meaning of ‘' Extreme ! used as the name of a
method we get no information, and shall be glad if some member of
the Exercise can provide the liecossary ‘ extrinsic force ' to disturb the
' inherent property ' of ringers, which renders them ‘ absolutely pas-
sive or indifferent,” and which is ' unceasingly recalled to our observa-
tion.'—Yours faiihfully, E. W. CARPENTER.

BISHOP VISITS RINGERS,
CLUN’'S UNIQUE DISTINCTION.

ULl Sunday evening, June 5th, tho Bishop of Hereford paid a visit
to the ringing room of St. George's Church, Clun, and congratulated
the lingers on their excellent ringing. He said they were doing a very
important work for tho church. He was not aware until that day
that Clun had the distinction of having a ringing curate and a ringing
warden. He did not think there was another church iu his diocese
that could claim the distinction.

Mr. W. Mead (warden and hon. secretary) thanked his lordship, on
behalf of the ringers, and asked him to accept a copy of tlio history
of Clun bells, which he graciously did. He said he had heard of Clun
bell-, aud should value the history very much. He was very much
interested in the fine room and its old church relics.

This was his lordship's first visit to Clun. and was for the dedication
of a fine granite cross as a war memorial, and also of a beautiful
carved oak sedilia, oak panelling, and the complete installation for
the electric light as memorials.

YORKSHIREMEN IN KENT.
To the Editor-

Hear Sir,—Advening to the accouut of the Yorkshiremcn's visit to
Kent, your correspondent P. J- J. is slightly iu error. All the per-
sons named arc members of the Yorks Association, and it was the
intention to include Mr. Aulstin in tho peal had he arrived earlier.

Only four ladies accompanied their husbands.

The « Committee ' got lost in re-visiting a former residence, whilst
another member went into Sussex prospecting for new scenes to
visit—Yours faithfully, — T. MAUDE.

Pudsev.

MR. F. J. LAMBERT'S 100 PEALS.

Doubles, 3; Minor, including ono iu 14 methods, 40: Triples: Grand-
sire, 25: Plain Bob. 1: Oicford Bob, 1; Stedman, 1. Major: Plain Bob,
15. Kent Treble Boh, 11; Double Bob, 1: St. Clement's Bob, 1; Canter-
bury Pleasure, 1; total, 100. Rung during a prriod of 30 years, and
including many first peals.

WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.

A quarterly meeting of the Winchester District of the Guild was
held at Sheffield English recently, bv  kind permission of the
Rector, the Rev. W. T. Long. The liclls were kept going during the
afternoon and evening to touches of Grandsire- and Stedmnn Triples,
BOIl, Treble Bob and Double Norwich Major.

The tea and business meeting took place at the Hatchet, Mr. J.
Williams (Master) being in the chair. There were ringers present from
Bi-liopstoko, North Stoneham, Southampton, U.pham Winchester,
Romsey, Curdridge, and the local tower. Mr. Prvce Taylor, of the
Loughborough Foundry, where the Slierfield bells ware cast, was un-
able to attend owing to indisposition.

A collection Oll behalf.of the late Mr.
£1 5s.

W. S. Wise nmounted to
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MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
MEETING AT SUNBURY.

On the south side of Sunburv runs the River Thames, and at this
point there is a grass-covered and partially-wooded island, which is
reached by meanb of ferry boats; the weir is situated at the west,
and the lock at the east end.

Standing 01l a strong and elevated footbridge which crosses the main
stream near the lock, tho changes from the tower were heard to full
advantage on Saturday last, when forty-three members and their
friends met to have a pull Oll the fine-toned ring of bells at St. Mary s
Church. The river was thronged with boats, aud many were decor-
ated, and with their happy and gaily-clad occupants were a pleasing
Bight constantly passing beneath the bridge: one party had a powerful
gramophone, and, curiously enough, the piece rendered as they were
passing the lock was * Les Cloches de Corneville.’

A good tea is quite half the success of a meeting, and a pleasant
interlude to the ringing. It was arranged by Mr. Alford, who was
assisted by willing ladies, so all- went. well. The business meeting was
presided ovor by the District Master (Mr. C. S. Bird) and a hearty
vote of thanks was accorded to the Rev. P. Sydney for allowing tbe
use of the bells. A discussion took place regarding the publications
of tha Central Council, and Mr. J. A. Trollope and Mr. W. Law-
rence both spoke upon the subject. The former explained the prin-
ciples set out in some of the books: and the "Hon. Secretary (Mr. W.
H. Hollier) suggested that a stock should be obtaiued on ‘' sale or
return.’

Subject to permission being obtained the August meeting will be
held at St. Peter's, Staines. Members attended from Brockley.
Chertsev, Croydon, Clapham, Ealing. East Ham, Farnham Royal, Ful-
ham, Heston, Hillingdon, Holloway, Hounslow. Isleworth, Kensington.
Staines, Teddington. Whitwell and Walton-on-Thamcs.

A MID-WEEK MEETING.

The first of the summer mid-week meetings of the North and East
District was held at Hornsey Oll Monday, June 6th. when nearly
30 members attended, amongst the towers represented being South-
gate, Edmonton, Finchley, Willesden, Tottenham, Stamford Hill, Wal-
thamstow, etc. Between 7 and 9 p.m. the bells were kept going
continuously to Grandsiie Doubles, Plain Bob, Kent, Double Court and
Double Stednian Slow Course. Not the least interesting part of the
proceedings was a visit to the disused church building, including the
crypt. This building has been closed since 1889, when the new and
much larger church close by was opened, and is in partial ruin. The
tower, which was built in 1486, is attached to the disused church, and
quite apart from the landsome building in us© at the present day.

A short business meeting wae held in the tower, at which a vote of
thanks was passed to the Rector (the Rev. B. Spink) for allowing the
members the use of the bells. It was announced that the next meeting
of this series would be held at Tottenham ou Tuesday. July 19th. and
that the next Saturday meeting was fixed for St. Andrew's, Holborn.
on June 25th.

GLOSSOP RINGERS' TRIP.

The ringers connected with St. James's, Whitfield, Gletsop. ana
their wives, had a most enjoyable trip round Derby on May 21st.
Travelling in a well-appointed charabanc they journeyed through the
glorious Peak district, the first stop being at Baslow. where a finst-
class breakfast awaited the party at tha Rutland Arms. Proceeding
to Matlock, two short touches of Stedman were rung before the party
went on through Chatsworth Park. Arriving at Duffield Church, an-
other half-hour's ringing was greatly eujoyed, Stedman being again
the method. A band of eight good Derbyshire ringers were here
waiting to start for a peal of Duffield, and the visitors left them
with wishes, for the best of luck. The next stop was at St. Alk-
niund’s, Derby, where short touches of Stedman and of Kent Treble
Bob were accomplished. After tea, the return journey was made by
way of Ashbourne and Buxton to Glossop. An ideal day assisted to make
a most successful outing, and the party tender their many thanks
to the Vicars, officials and ringers of the above places for the use of
the bells, and tbe Kkind reception given to them, particularly Mr. J.
Lord, of Darbv, for the information given which helped the excur-
sionists to get in touch with the various places en route.

THE PEAL AT MERSHAM.

Congratulations to Miss R. Thomas on ringing her first peal at
Mersham, Kent. This was her second attempt. She rung 2 hours and
3 minutes oil the first occasion some few weeks ago, and was not the
cause of the failure. We understand a movement is on foot to (se
cure a peal board to record the peal. On both occasions Mr. nnd Mrs.
Parkes, the parents of Mr. Harrv Parkes, of Pattison Farm, Mersham.
kindly entertained Messrs. Tribe (Tenterden) and Billenness (Hawk-
hursM. and these rineers wish to return their best thanks for th"
hospitality received. The peal was the first peal that has been rung
at Mgrsham for some years, nnd the first peal run" nt Mersinm by all
th? band. wiFh the exception of Mr. Alfred Gower.
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SUNDAY SERVICE TOUCHES.

WATFORD, HERTS-—At the Parish Church, on Sunday, June 12th,
for evening service, a quarter-peal of Grandsire Triples (1,260 changes),
in 50 mins : G. Seaman 1. \\. E. Oakley 2, £ Jones 3. R. l'icton 4,
E. Elliott 5, W. Norris 6, F. Edwards (conductor) 7, W. Hewitt 8.

EARL SOHAM.—On Sunday, June 12th, for morning service, 360
Double Court: W. Miller 1, H. W. Crickmer 2, E. Curtiss 3, W. G.
Orickmor (conductor) 4, E Jenkins 5, H. Hall 6. For afternoon ser-
rioe, at Bodfield, 720 Double Court: W. G. Crickmer 1, R. Abbott 2,
B. Curtiss 3, G. Stannard 4, W. Ruffells 5, H. Hall (conductor) 6.

KENSINGTON.—For evening service, 0l June 12th, at St. Mary
Abbot’s, 1,259 Grandsire Catei-s: C. W. Roberts (first guarter-peal) 1,
W. E. Garrard (conductor) 2, R. Gordou Brown 3, A. E. Sharman 4,
G. W. Frayne 5, A. E. Bradley 6, P. G. Miles 7, A. V. Selby 8, H. G.
Miles 9, W E. G. Hewton 10.

DEPTFQRD, KENT.—At the Church of St. John the Evangelist, on
Sunday, June 12th, for evening service, a quarter-peal of Grandsire
Triples: R. A. Fosdike 1, E. J. Pannett 2, H. Norgate 3, J. Law 4,
W. J. Jeffries (conductor) 5, T. A. Easterby 6, E. B. Crowder 7, C.
H. Macklin 8. Composed by G. H. Daynes.

EAST GRINSTEAD, SUSSEX.—On Sunday morning, June 12tli, for
servioe, a touch of Grandsire Triples (1,414 changes) was rung in fO
minutes, in the following order: W. Mills 1, G. Tizzard 2, G. Hewett
3, N. E. Hope 4, H. Coomber 5, T. Tullett 6, J. Wren (conductor) 7, S
Chesson 8.

CHESTERFIELD, DERBYSHIRE.—At St. Mary aud All Saints’, Ol
Sunday evening, June 12th, a quarter-peal of ‘Bob Roval (1,260
changes), in 53 mins.: G. Hollis 1, W. Allwood 2, F. Jacobs 3, A.
Emghts 4, F. E. Smith 5 *A. P. Knights 6, <W. T. Palmer 7,
*W. Bennett 8, G. A. Thompson 9, T. W. Gore 10. * First quarter-
peal of Bob Royal.

WROTHAM, KENT.—OIL Sunday morning, June 12th, in 53 mins.
a quarter-peal of Kent Treble Bob Major (1,280 changes), by: II!
Haigh, taken from ' The Ringing World J. Avis, G. Hayes t.
Hayes, R. Smith, R. C'opelin, G. Morrad, G. Ambrose, F. M. Mitchell
(conductor) The band were motored out from Gravesend by Mr K
uCopelm.

HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HERTS.—At St. Mary's Church, Oll Sunday,
June 12th, for the evening service, 1.260 of Grandsire Triples, in 47
mins.: R. Walker 1, H. Golding (conductor) 2, F. Walker 3, H. Gates
4, J. Floyd 5, W. Shcpheaid 6, W. Floyd 8, W. D. Butler 8. Rung
as..?, ay compliment to the ringers of the 3rd and the 8th.

SHEFFIELD At All Saints’ Church, for evening service, Oll
Bunday, June 12th. a quarter-peal of Grandsire Triples (1,386 changes),
in 50 mins.: F. Willey 1, W. Hammond 2, W. Stubley 3, A. W. Gled-
stone 4, T. Chown 5, J. W. Smithson (conductor) 6. W Chown 7 F
Kippon 8. Also rung as a birthday compllment to the linger of the 6th’
and his first quarter-peal as conductor.

TYLDESLEY, LANCASHIRE.—In Sunday, June 5th, for evening
service, a quarter-peal of Grandsire Triples (1.260 changes) in 45
-mins : Hy. Allred 1, Hbt. Allred 2, R. Allred, junr., 3 T B  Worslev
(conductor) 4, W. Hindley 5. T. Allred 6. R. Allred' feenr., 7, Hugh

°'  ,Irs~dllarter away from the trehle for the 3rd ringer.

LLANISIHSR GLAMORGANSHIRE. - On Sunday, June 5th a
quarter,;peal of Grandsire Doubles (1,260 changes): H. Nott G Sncn-
N '7 '- Biss (conductor), G. Chamberlain, A. H. Cossam. H." Hawkins.
Kimg muffled for the service and unveiling of the war memorial win-

LV 'ne ta*',et erecM in memory of the fallen of this parish,
placed at the west'end of the church.
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(conductor)
Hayward 8.

SOUTH CERNEY, GLOS.—Ou Sunday, Juno 5th. for evening ser-
vice, at All HallowV Church, ten six-scores of Grandsiro Doubles: F.
W. Cox 1, J. Butler (conductor) 2, F. J. Lewis 3, S. Hicks 4, A.
Painter 5. Rung with the bells half-muffled, on the occasion of the
dedication of a war memorial in the church. Also several six-scores Ol
Stedman Doubles, after service, with the bells open: W. G. Cook 1,
S. Hicks 2, J. Butler 3, F. J. Lewis (conductor) 4, Y. R. Williams 5.

EARLS COLNE, ESSEX. — At St. Andrew's Church 0!l Sunday,
June 5th, for evening service, 224 Cambridge Surprise Major, 112
Double Norwich Court, Bob Major, and 210 Grandsire Triples. Those
taking part were: W. Arnold, W. Burst, John Turner, J. Fleuly, i(.
Flcuty, S. Warne, F. Claydon, J. French, W. Scillitoe. All are local
men, and regular Sunday service ringers at this church.

LONG WANTON. On Sunday, June 5th, for evening service, 720
Double Oxford; W. Uawkcs 1, F. J. Cook 2, J. B. 'Woolley 3, L. A
Cook 4, G. Crisp 5. C. W. Cook (conductor) 6. First extent iu tile
method by the local band.

KING'S LANGLEY, HERTS.—On Sunday, June
service, 672 Grandsire Triples: N. Walker 1, L. A.
Cook 3. B. Dollimore 4, R. S. Cook (conductor) 5, A.
7, R. Haywood 8.

BECKENHAM, KENT.—At St. George’'s Church, on Sunday, June
5tli, for evening service, a quarter-peal of Oxford Bob Triples: 11
Hawkes 1, P. Meek 2, W. Smith (composer and conductor) 3, 1.
Scutcher 4, F. King 5, G. Wickens 6, F. Terry 7, W. Meek 8. rirst
quarter-peal by ringers of 1 and 4. Fiiet quarter-peal in the. metho-i
by ringer of the 2nd, and fittst quarter-peal by a local band since 1914.

LINCOLN.—At St. Peter-at-Arches Church, 0ll Sunday, Julie 5th,
for evening service, 518 Graudsiro Triples: R. Chester 1, C. B. Chester
2. J. R. Mackman 3. L. Snell 4, A. R. Chester 5, G. Almonds 6, H.
L. Pask (finst as conductor) 7, A. H. A. Marcon 8.

MARKET DEEPING, LINCOLNSHIRE.—At St. Gutlilac's Church,
on June 5th, for«eveuing service, 720 St. Clement's Bob Minor: A. E.
Sncath 1, E. Wright (first 720 in the method) 2, Wc A. Day 3, J.
Laudon 4, H. M. Day (conductor) 5, G. Wells 6.

WORCESTER.—On Sunday, June 5th, at St. John's, a 720 of Kent
Treble Bob Minor: J. Woodyatt 1, J. J. Jefferies 2, S. Holt 3, W.
Page (conductor) 4. W. Lewis 5, J. R. Mackman 6.—On Sunday, June
12th, 720 Cambridge Minor: W. Edgington 1, F. Walters 2, W. Lewis
3, J. J. Jefferies 4, W. Page (conductor) 5, J. R. Mackman 6. These
are the first 720's upon the bells since the rehanging of the tenor by
Messrs. Gillett and Johnston, and the *go ' was pronounced satisfac-
tory.

BATH. SOMERSET. —At St. Saviour's Church, on Sunday, June 5th,
for morning service, a quarter-peal (1,260 changes) of Grandsire
Triples, in 44 mius.: H. Merrett (first quarter of Triples awav from
tenor) 1, J. Taylor 2. J. W. Bell 3, T. Grant 4, C. W. Bell' 5, G.
Janes 6, H. Taylor (conductor) 7, H. E. Mills 8.

SWANSCOMBE, KENT.—On Sunday morning, May 29th, in 49
mills., a quarter-pcal of Grandsire Triples: J. Avis, R. Copelin, F.
Hayes, G. Hayes, G. Ambrose (conductor), W. Lane, F. M. Mitchell,
S. Simmons. First quarter by S. Simmons, and first as conductor by
G. Ambrose. *

oth, for evening
Walker 2, A. «.
Hill 6, A. Rogers

USEFUL TOUCHES FOR SERVICE RINGING.

1.280 CAMBRIDGE SURPRISE 768 BOB MAJOR.

MAJOR 2345678 W 5's 3rds M
23456 MW B H 7234568 — — S
3572468  — _ 9
ggggz Twice rcptated.
%6513 J. George.
gggfg 320 BOB MAJOR
23246 2345678 W 4 | M H
23456 5327648 S
723564%# S
H. J. Gummer. 2345678 S

G. Hollis.

1,024 DOUBLE NORWICH MAIOR. 720 OXFORD BOB OR

DOUBLE BOB MINOR.

25455 1
23456

3260
26551 35642 1
32465 42635 4
24565 56423 2
45265 S 26545 1
23564 64532 1
35264 8 34256 1
31256 Five times repented. Bob
43256 instead of Single at 3re.
23456 aud 6th part-onds.

G. Il. Cross. H. W. Wilde.
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LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.
SUGGESTED INCREASE 01' SUBSCRIPTION.

Tlie monthly meeting of the Rookdale Branch was held 0ll Saturday,
June 11th, at Huywood Parish Church, 34 members being picsent
from Heywood, Middleton, Oldham, Newhey, Milurow Toumoidon
Parish and Unitarians, Crosstones £ast C>omp on Milea -laitting

The evening s meeting was presided over by the Rector (the Rev.
j 11 Clarke, M.S.), and the resolution with regard to the proposed
reduction of the committee of management was again discussed, but
the meeting thought it would be unwise to carry out the suggestion.

A recommendation was passed that the subscription to the associa-
tion should be raised from Is. to Is. 6d. per year.

It was decided that the next monthly meeting should be held at
Leesfield, on Saturday, July 9tb.-The usual vote of thanks to the
Keotor for the use of tower and belks, and also for presiding over the
meeting and to the local band for having everything in readiness, was

1 PRESTON BRANCH TO HAVE A ‘' SOCIAL.

A well-attended meeting of tho PrcBton Branch was held at Crostou,
0l Saturday, June 4th. Tin- bells, which are a handy ring of eight, by
Messrs Mears and Stainbaiik, were well utilised from 3 to 5 o clock.
Tea was partaken Ol at the Grapes Hotel, aud was followed by the
business meeting, under the chairmanship of Mr. Taylor, of len-
wortbaxn. It wa» decided to make the nrat meeting the occasion ot
a charabanc outing, and visit Goosnargh and Kibcliester 1l one atter-
1100ll. The contest for the place of the annual branch meeting was a
very keen one, no less than three towers being proposed. Eventually
Preston was selected.

Bv a large majority it wa*. decided to have an annual social gather-
ing* and Chorley was the place chosen, the <late«to be the first Satur-
day in December. # s

A deputation was appointed to interview the Vicar.of St. Lukes,
Preston, with regard to their proposed new bells. Unfortunately the
authorities have decided to have hemispherical bells, but it is hoped, if
not too late, that tlie deputation may Bucceed iu getting the scheme
altered.

The whole of the Croston baud, nine iu number, were elected mem-
bers of the association, and the Hector was elected an hou. life mem*
her. The Rector of Croston is also the Bishop of Whalley, and he
graced the proceedings by his presence after the meeting, moving
about amongst the ringers, and chatting pleasantly to all. Tlie stand-
ard method* were rung during the afternoon and evening, as well as
Cambridge Surprise Minor.

LADIES* GUILD.

The quarterly mating of the Western Branch was held at Thorn-
Imrv Ol Saturday, Juno llth. It was the first time the members of
the*Ladies’ Guild have been able to visit this district, and they were
given a very kind welcome by the local ringers. The service was
taken by the curate of Thornliury (the Rev. — Reece), and the Rev.
M. E. Thorold, of Bristol.—Mi. F. K. Howell had made all arrange-
ments for tea. to which 37 sat down. After tea, the Vicar gave per-
mission to any members who liked to do so to walk through his
grounds, and many gladly availed themselves of the privilege.

A large number of towers were represented in the belfry—as besides
the local band there' were present“ringers from Portishead, Clapton-in-
Gordano, Mangotsfield. Olveston, Almondsbury, Wickwar, Berkeley,
Wotton-under-Edge, Stinchcombe, and St. Nicholas’, St. Thomas's,
arid St. Michael’s, Bristol.

The Guild hope that they may hear of some new members in this
district—either performing or honorary members will be welcomed.

U is hoped to get permission to hold the next quarterly meeting at
Wraxall about September 17th, and also to have a practice meeting
at Abbott's Leigh in July.

A 4MISSIONARY f EFFORT.

On* Saturday, June 4th, lingers from Bucknall and Norton paid a
visit to Brown Edge tower, the object being to revive interest in
change ringing in that district. The visitors were successful in ring-
ing a date touch in the seven following methods: London, Wells and
Cambridge Surprise. Violet. Woodbine, Kefit and Oxford Treble Bob,
in | hour 15 min«. F. Triner 1. J. W. Walker 2. W. Wheeldon o, J.
E Wheeldon 4, W. Frsdley 5. W. P. Deane (conductor) 6.

STAPLEFORD. <AMBS.—At St. Andrew s Church. 0l April 27th.
720 Kent Treble Boh Minor: Mt<s K. Willers (first 7201 of Minor) 1, E.
S. Hibbins (conductor' 2, A. .T. Layton 3. A. E. Austin 4, R. Harvey
5 F Nunn 6. Also 720 Plain Bob Minor: A. J. Layton 1, J. Ward 2,
Ms= K. Willers (first 720 of Minor with a bob bell) 3. A. E. Austin 4.
E G. Hibbins (conductor) 5, F. Nunn G Great credit is due to Miss
Gillette for the way she rang these 733's.
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NOTICES,

The E ditorial O ffice Of the ‘Ringing W orid, to
which all communications should be sent, is 63, Com-
mercial Road, W oking.

LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Meetings for
practice on Mondays at 7.30 p.m.: St. Clement Danes,
June 27th. Sundays at 10 a.m.; St. Clement's, ist and
3rd; Bishopsgate, 2nd and 4th.— A. D. Barker, Hon.
General Sec., Oak Cottage, Farnburn Avenue, near Slough.

ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS
(established 1637).— Meetings for practice will be held
at St. Magnus, Lower Thames Street, on June 23rd;
Southwark Cathedral on the 21st; and *St. Michael's,
Cornhill, on the 28th, all at 7.30 p.m. *Business meeting
afterwards at the headquarters.— William T. Cockerill,.
Hon. Sec., 32, Edgeley Road, Clapham, S.W .4.

SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND YOUTHS.
—Meetings for practice:—St. Martin's, first Monday in
the month, at 7.30 p.m.; St. Bride's, second Saturday,
5 p.m.; Shoreditch, 3rd Wednesday, 7.30 p.m. Services,
2nd and 4th Sundays, 5 p.m.—J. W. Cornford, Hon. Sec.,
7d, Morgan Mansions, N.7. .

HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Eastern
District.—The usual meeting will be held at Bennington
on June i8th, when the bells will be available during
the afternoon and evening.—Tea will be provided free by
the Rev. Canon Mills at 5 o'clock. All will be heartily
welcome.—W. H. Lawrence, Hon. District Sec., Little
Munden.

LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Late the St.
James’ Society (Established 1824).— Southern District.—
The next meeting will be held on Saturday, June 18th, at
Christ Church, near the Wandle Bridge, from 2.30 to 4
p.m., and SS. Peter and Paul, Mitcham, from 4 to 8 p.m.
Service at 5 p.m., tea at 5.30, at 1/6 per head. All ringers
welcome.—F. A. Smith, Hon. Dis. Sec., 14, Oxford Avenue,
Merton Park, S.W .20.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Southern District.—
The Quarterly meeting of the above will be held at Don-
caster on Saturday, June 18th. Bells (8) ready at 3.
Service at 5; preacher, the Rev. Archdeacon Sandford.
Tea 5.45 p.m. Will those who ordered reports and have-
not had them try and get them at this meeting ? Subscrip-
tions received.—F. Clark, Hon. Sec., 18, Royston Avenue,
Bentley Road, Doncaster.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Western District.—
A meeting will be held at Thornhill on Saturday, June-
18th. Bells available : Thornhill, all day; Dewsbury and
Earlsheaton, from 2.30 p.m. Short service in church,.
4 pm. Tea at 5 p.m. All ringers welcome.—P. L.
Cooper, Hon Dist. Sec.

SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—A Quarterly
meeting will be held at Kirdford, Q1 Saturday, June 18th.
Bells available from 2 o’clock till 9. Tea at the Bull Inn
at 50'clock.—A. W. Groves, 9, Sugden Road, Worthing.

BEDFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Luton District.
— A Meeting will be held at Barton-le-Clay, on Saturday,.
June 18th. Bells (8) available at 3 p.m. All ringers
welcome.—A. E. Sharman, Hon. Sec., 199, High St. North,
Dunstable.

SOCIETY FOR THE ARCHDEACONRY OF
STAFFORD. — The Annual meeting will be held at
Lichfield, on Saturday, June 18th. Cathedral bells from
2.30 to 3.45and 6 107.30. St. Mary's (8), and St. Michael’s.
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(6), from 3. Service in Cathedral at 4. Tea at 4.50 at
Lloyd’s (late Seagrave’s) Restaurant, 1/- each to fully-paid
members, to others 1/9. General meeting to follow.—
H. Knight, Hon. Sec., 15, Rugby St., Wolverhampton.

WARWICKSHIRE GUILD. The next meeting
-of the Guild will be held at Berkswell on Saturday,
June 18th. The President, Canon Back, extends a hearty
invitation to all members to be present. Bells available
from 3 o’clock. Short service in church at 5 p.m.—
A. Wilkerson, Hon. Sec., 68, Norman Avenue, Nuneaton.

NORWICH AND IPSWICH ASSOCIATION.—
Saxmundham District.—A quarterly meeting will be held
at Kelsall on Saturday next, June 18th. Bells of Parish
Church (8) and Saxmundham (6) available from 3 p.m. All
ringers are welcome.—George Wilson, Hon. District Sec.,
41, Valley Road, Leiston.

ALL SAINTS', WEST HAM, ESSEX.— Meetings
for practice, Thursday, June 23rd,and fortnightly after;
also service ringing— 1st Sunday, 10.15 a.m.; 3rd Sunday,
5.30 p.m. in each month.—G. Hayden, 29, Maryland St.,
Stratford, E.15.

WORCESTERSHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Northern
Branch.—The next quarterly meeting will be held at Clent
on June 25th. Bells available 3 p.m. Service at 4 p.m.
Tea will be provjded at the Vine for all who notify me at
1/6 per head. Business meeting afterwards.—O. Davies,
Branch Sec., 29, Hampton Street, Netherton.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Blackburn Branch.
— A meeting of the above branch will be held at the Black-
burn Parish Church, on Saturday, June 25th. Bells ready
at 3 o’clock. Meeting 6.30 p.m.—J. Wat*on, Branch
Sec., 33, Langham Road, Blackburn.

ESSEX ASSOCIATION.— Northern Division.— The
district Quarterly meeting will be held at Earls Colne, on
Saturday, June 25th. See notice next week.— Bert Redg-
well, Sec., Rayne, Nr. Braintree, Essex.

SAFFRON WALDEN SOCIETY. — (Established
1623.)—The 298th Anniversary of Great Ringing Day
will be held on Monday, June 27th. Ringing commences
at 9 a.m. All ringers are cordially invited. A meat tea
will be held at 5 p.m., and those wishing to be present
should notify the Secretary not later than the 24th.—R.
A. Strong, Hon. Sec.

LADIES’' GUILD.—Southern District. — The next
meeting will be held on Saturday, June 25th, at Hersham.
Bells available from 3 o'clock. Service 4.30 Tea and
meeting to follow. All welcome. Will those requiring
tea notify me without fail by Tuesday, June 21st >—H. T.
Mills, 125, St. Michael's Road, Aldershot.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LON-
DON DIOCESAN GUILD.—North and East District.
—A meeting will be held at St. Andrew’s, Holborn, by
kind permission of the Rev. E. C. Bedford, on Saturday,
June 25th. Bells from 3 p.m. Service at 5.30. Tea, at
a small cost, at 6, to those who advise me by Tuesday,
June 21st, at latest.—C. T. Coles, Hon. Sec., 49, Wood
8treet, E.17.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.— Berks and Bucks
Branch.—The Summer meeting of this branch will be held
at Beaconsfield, on Saturday, June 25th. Evening service
(Guild booklet) at Parish Church at 5 p.m., with an
address by Rev. E. J. Teesdale, M.A. An invitation to
take tea with Mr. and Mrs. C. A. Bennett has again been
kindly offered to the members and ringing friends. It is
hoped Lady Burnham will preside at the Burnham Hall.
A short musical entertainment will follow. Tower and
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handbells available by permission of the R

Churchwardens. Please inform the branch ec or an®
before 20th June how many of your compan secretary
be present.—W. H. Fussell, Farnburn * propose to
Slough. Avenue, Nr.

HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION. — st

Albans District.— A meeting will be held at St. Albans on
Saturday, June 25th. St. Peter’'s tower (10 bells) open
from 3 to 5. The Abbey bells will be available after tea.
Tea arrangements will be made on the day. All ringers and
friends welcome.—Wm. Nash, North Mymms, District Sec.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL ASSOCIATION.
—Wotton-under-Edge Branch.—The next meeting will
be held at Tytherington on Saturday, June 25th. Bel'ls
from 3 p.m. Service 4.30. Tea and business to follow.
—W. A. Lewis, Branch Hon. Sec., Ham, Berkeley, Glos.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Manchester Branch.
—The next meeting will be held at Worsley on Saturday,
June 25th. Bells ready at 3.30. Meeting at 6 o’clock.
Please note the time. All ringers welcome.—I1. Hall,
Branch Sec., 22, Silver Street, Miles Platting, Manchester.

DONCASTER AND DISTRICT SOCIETY. — A
meeting at Tickhill on Saturday, June 25th. Eight bells
at 2.30. Tea at 5, 1/6 per head, to those who notify Mrs.
Whitaker, Castle Gate, Tickhill, before Thursday, June
23rd. Buses run from Doncaster. All ringers welcome.
— Harold Walker, Hon. Sec.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION. — Ashford Dis-
trict.—A cordial invitation has bfen received from Rev.
S. Th. Lockyear for the members to meet at Brabourne
on Saturday, June 25th, at 3 o’clock. Waill all members
intending to be present please notify me not later than
Tuesday, June 21st 7—GC< Tribe, Hon. District Ssc.,
British School Villas, Tenterden.

ESSEX ASSOCIATION.—Northern Division.— The
district quarterly meeting will be held at Earls Colne on
Saturday, June 25th. Short service, with address, at
4.30, followed by tea, 1/- per head, at the ‘' White Lion.’
Please notify me not later than Tuesday, June 21st.—
Bert Redgwell, Sec., Rayne, near Braintree.

MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION. — Notting-
ham District.—A meeting of the above will be held at
Colston Bassett on Saturday, June 25th. Ringing from 3
to 8 pm. Tea 5 o’clock. A motor will leave Trent
Bridge 2.30, fare 3/- per head, including return journey.
Will members and friends wishing to go please notify the
Hon. Sec., Thos. H. Kirkby, 7, Selkirk Street, Carrington,
Notts, by Tuesday, June 21st ?

FRESSINGFIELD, SUFFOLK.—By permission of
the Vicar the bells will be available for ringing on Satur-
day, June 25th, from 2.30 p.m.—Fred R. Borrett.

HALIFAX AND DISTRICT ASSOCIATION.—The
Annual meeting and an 8-bell contest will be held on
Saturday, June 85th, at Kirkburton. Draw at 3.15 p.m.
A tea will be provided (reasonable) for all who please notify
the local Sec., Mr. Edwin Armitage, Dean Field, Kitk-
burton, by June 20th.—W . Frith, Sec.

CENTRAL NORTHANTS ASSOCIATION.—Ketter-
ing District.—The Annual meeting will be held at Burton
Latimer on June 25th. Usual arrangements. Those
requiring tea Kkindly let me know by Wednesday', June
22nd, latest.—R. F. Turner, Hon. District Sec., 7, Gordon
Street, Kettering.

LEEDS AND DISTRICT SOCIETY.—A meeting,
will be held at Tong on Saturday, June 25th. Business
meeting at 7.30 p.m. in Cricket Field. Bells available
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all day.— M. Moorhouse, Hon. Sec., 10, Mitford Road,
Armley, Leeds. -
KENT COUNTV ASSOCIATION. — Canterbury
District.—The Annual meeting of this District will be held ewe I n S
at Dover on Saturday, June 25th. The bells of St. Mary
will be available from 3 o’clock to 4.30 and 6 o’clock to W
7.30. Service at 4.30 at the Parish Church. Tea at
5 o’clock in the Parish Hall at 1/6 per head (allowance by
Association 1/-). The bells of St. James’ will also be
available. Will all those intending to be present notify a_l I l eS Crn_
me not later than Tuesday, June 21st >—E. G. Buesden, !
Hon. District Sec., 3, Hackington Terrace, Canterbury.
LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION (late the St
James’ Society). Established 1824.— Southern District.—
A meeting for practice will be held on Saturday, July 2nd,
at All Saints’, Fulham. Tower open from 5 to 8 p.m.
—F. A. Smith, Hon. Sec.
MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LON-
DON DIOCESAN GUILD.—South and West District.—
A meeting will be held at Hillingdon (St. John’s) on
Saturday, July 2nd Ringing from 3.30. Will arrange
tea for ail who let me know by June 27th. All ringers
welcome.—W. H. Hollier, Hon. Sec., 29, Duke Road, W .4.
LADIES’ GUILD.—The annual general meeting will
be held at Birmingham on Saturday, July 2nd, when it is
hoped that as many members as possible will attend.
Full particulars will Appear next week.—Edith K. Parker
Hon. Sec., 17, Wellington Road, Enfield, Middlesex.
SALISBURY DIOCESAN GUILD. — Devizes
Branch.—A quarterly meeting will be held at Devizes on
July 2nd at 3. Service at 4'3°* Tea 5« Anyone
requiring tea please advise me ,early.—Harold F. Brown
45, West End, Westbury, Wilts.

HANDBELLS FOR SALE.
Set of 15 Handbells in diatonic scale (size 21). Require
slight overhaul, ~7.—'P,’ * Ringing World ' Office, Woking.

PUBLICATIONS.

* AMONG THE BELLS. - The Ringing Career ofCHURCH BELLS SINGLY OB

tate Rev. F. E. Robinson, M.A., Vicar of Drayton,
®erks, Master of the Oxford Diocesan Guild. Part | to IN RINGS,
XX. may be had singly at 6d. net. Unbound numbers
l. to XX. complete, 8s. 6d. Or the whole work bound in

cloth for los. 6d. net. From Mrs. Robinson, Fair Bell Frames in Cast Iron, Steel

Home, Wokingham. d O k
«The Bells of Southwell Cathedral ' (by W. A. lames an aK.

bsqg.), a pamphlet of 14 pages, giving the history of these
.e f, 1055—J92i, may be obtained from Mr. G E H
ladgett, Printer, Southwell, Notts. Price 6d. post fiee. Be"S tuned on the IateSt Im-

The Central Council Publications Proved principles initiated by

LIST OF PUBLICATIONS the late Canon Simpson.
REY E W 0. ' JENKYN! BFfoadidhds,"Cavetsiam ! "Reatling
#ON THE PRESERVATION OF BELLS s. d.

GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

w25EL RULES FOR AN ASSOCIATION...
MODEL RULES FOR A LOCAL COMPANY

[(olNe) NOVINIVING, I N

M fthod~SECT,ONI (0dd- Be!l Treble::
|
' OLLECDYW.eO°xLrBob)s* S8CT,ON.n (PaD ~°b ad g BRIS I OL N
COLLECTION OF PEALS Section ill (Double Norwich) 0

1

o
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JOHN WARNER & SONS

LIMITED,

Bellfoundcers and
BellDangcrs, * *.

THE SPITALFIELDS BELL FOUNDRY,

SPELMAN STREET.

H LONDON, CL.I.

ri

By Royal Warrant to H.M. King George V.

a ESTABLISHED 1763. 0

The Jasper 5nowdon Series.

REVISED PRICES.
1 ROPB-SIQHT( la. 10d.; sixth ed.; 150 pages; treat* Plain Bob oom-
mslicing on three bells.
QRANDSIR1S," 2s. XOd.; aeoond ed.; 20* pages, commencing on five
belli, complete with the Thompeon Charts, eto.
grTA-NDARD MHTHODS8. 6th Edition, ft. 10d.
WTHDMAN," 2». 10d.; 276 pages by the Rev. 0. D. P. Davie*, M.A,,
with an appendix by the late Sir Arthur Heywood, Bart., eto.
«TREBLE BOB, 1., 1*. 10d.; second ed.; with appendix; 100 olosely
printed page*.
PART n.—At present oat ol print.
DODBLH NORWICH 0. B. Major.—Out ot print at present.
All post free. on reo*pt of postal order from

Mrs. LAURA SNOWDON, Gartmel, Lancashire.

BELL ROPES

J dn Astley & Sons

LIMITED,

C OVENTRY

MAKER'S SINCE 1730.

RINGERS 1

Please send your enquiries.
SATISFACTION GUARANTEED.

THE RINGING WORLD.

ford, and Published bv The Rolls House Publishing Oo.,
Buildings, London, E.G.

June 17th, igai.

“The World's Best Beilropes”

PROVED IN THE RINGINQ OF THE
WORLD'S RECORD PEAL.

THE SAME EXCELLENT QUALITY AS 1
BEFORE THB WAR. SEND YOUR
ORDERS AND LET US CONVINCE YOU. |

Splicing and Repairs
JOHN PRITCHARD.
Swan Street,

LOUOHBOROUOM.
Established over a HUNDRED YEARS.

Price List
of the
Sole Maker.

Unique for Presentation.
An Inkstand in the design of aWell-shaped Bell;

This charming model in Solid Hall Marked Silver
«ill make a roost appropriate aad useful Qift.

It can be supplied in the following sizes:—
Diameter 24m. 2$in. 3jin. 3%in. 4m. 4$in. 5n.
Price 22/- 33/- 40/- 48/- 60/- 73/- 98/-
Monogram or Inscriptions Engraved at Moderate Charges

J. COMBER,

w O K I M G
(MAKER OF THE RINGERS BADGE))

THOMAS POBLE A SOW, Church Bell-

Hangers, TAUNTON.—Bells Hung on the
most approved principles Old Bells Re casts
New Bells supplied, Ropes of the best make.
Ellacombe’s Chiming Apparatus fixed. Hand*
bells in sets Chromatic or Diatonic.

Goldsmith and
Silversmith,

THE BADGE OF THE CRAFT
A Beautifully Executed

RINGERS® PENDANT

In Qold, Silver or Bronze.
Specially SuUable for Olft*.
Prices, Gold (9 carat) 35/-, Silver 7/6
Bronze 3/6 (post ftes).

J. COMBER. Goldsmlth and Jeweller,

1 m(me' Homs <171 WO 1110

(6] K I N G

Printed for the Proprietors by the Woodbridge Press, Ltd.. Guild-

Ltd., Bream'™



